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STATE OF VIRGINIA, CITY OF HAMPTON, TO-¥IT:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SAID CITY:

The grand Jurors of the Commonwealth of Virginia, in and for the body of

June

the City of Hampton and now

lerm,

attending the said Court, at its
i

nineteen hundred and seventy-four

COSME MARTINEZ

, upon their oaths do present;

That

23rd day of September

on the

nine hundred end seventy-three

feloniously kill and murder Thomas L.

Uzzell,

to-wit:

, in the ycar one thousund

, in the said City, did unlawfully and

by shooting and

stabbing, in violation of Section 18.1-21 of the Code of Virginia of

1950, as amended,

against the peace and dignity of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Upon the testimony of,

Det. I.

L. Jones

sworn in Court, and sent to the Grand Jury to give evidence.
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STATE OF VIRGINIA, CITY OF HAMPTON, TOWIT:
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SAID CITY: . s

The grand Jurors of the Commonwealth of Virginia, in and for the body of the City of Hampton and now

attending the said Court, al its June term,
|

nineteen hundred and __seventy-four , upon their oaths do present;

That COSME MARTINFZ

on the 23rd day of September , in the year onc thousund

seventy-three - , in the said City, ©on Thomas L. Uzzell

nine hundred and

did feloniously make an assault by the threat and presenting of deadly
weapons and instrumentalities, to-wit: a gun and a knife, he the said
Thomas L. Uzzell, in bodily fear feloniously did put, and money,
United States currency of the value of One Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars
($150.00), the denominations of such money being to the Grand Jurors
unknown, of the goods, chattels and property of the Hess Service Station,
3300 W. Mercury Boulevard, Hampton, Virgihia, in thelcare, custody and
control of the said Thomas L. Uzzell, an employee of the Hess Service

»
Station, 3300 W. Mercury Boulevard, Hampton, Virginia, and from the
persdn apd against the will of the said Thomas L. Uzzell then and there,
to-wit: on the day and year aforesaid, in the City aforesaid, feloniously
and violently did steal, take, carry away and rob, in violation of

Section 18.1-91 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended,

against the peace and dignity of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Upon the testimony of,

Det. I. L. Jones - :

sworn in Court, and sent to the Grand Jury to give evidence.



. Virginia do recover against the said Cosme Martincz its costs

C1rCult Lcurc ror tne (icy ot Harpton, Virginia, on Friday,
the twenty-first day of June, in the year of our Lcrd, one
thousand nine hundred and seventy-four.

Buur - 1 uuklj

Commonwealth

- ( Felony - Viol. of Section 18.1-21
: (Murder)

Cosme Martinez

!

Tﬂis day came the Assistant Attorney for the
Commonwealth and Cosme Martinez (born Pecember 19, 1945),
who stands indicted of a felony, to-wit: Viol. of Section 18.1-21

(Murder) was led to the bar in the custody of the jailor of

I .
——— S — —— ——— i s b v+ 8 08—

this Court.

Whereupon the accused was arraigned and after
private consultation with Kenneth C. Hogge, counsel heretofore
appointed by the Court, pled not guilty to the indictment,
which plea was tendered by the accused in person, and thereupon

the accused after having been first advised by his attorney,

waived trial by jur¥ and with the concurrence of the Assistant
Attorney for the Commonwealth and the Court, here entered or i
record, the Court proceeded to heaf and determine the case
without the intervention of a jury, as provided by law, and having;
heard the evidence doth find the accused guilty of Viol. of |
Section 18.1-21 (Murder) as charged in the indictment, and :
ascertains his punishﬁent to be Fifteen-(lS) years in the ;
State penitentiary, ' o \\E
And it being demanded of the accused if anything i
for himself he had or knew to say why judgment should not be
pronounced against him according to law, and nothing being :
offered or alleged in delay of judgment, it is accordingly the
judgment of this Court that the said Cosme Martinez be and he is
hereby sentenced to confinement in the penitentiary of this
Commonwealth for the term of Fifteen (15) yoa?s..tho period by

Fbe Court ascertained as aforesaid, ﬁna that the Commonwecalth of

]
by it about its prosecution in this behalf oxpended. 000003 '



P —————=
And it is further ordered that as soon as

;lpossible after the entry of this order the prisoner be removed

and safely conveyed according to law from tho jail of this Court
to the said penitentiary, therein to be kopt, confincd and

treated in the manner provided by law.

The Court certifies that at all timos during the’

|
trial of this case the accused was personally present,

This sentence is to run concurrently with the
sentence the defendant is currently serving in the state of
Texas, but not Qith any sentence of this Court or any other |
Couré. '

And the prisoner is remanded to jail.

- 00000
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Circuit Court for the city of Hamp on, Virginia, on Friday, the
twenty-first 'day of gune, in thé year of our pord, one thot
nine Kun red ang seventy-four. * ousan?

hoor _1 PACFE_I':)!

Commonwealth

vs. ( Felony - Viol, of Section 18.1-91
(Armed Robbery)

Cosme Martinez !
|

This day came the Assistant Attorney for the
Commonwealth and Cosme Martinez (born December 19, 1945), i
who stands indicted of a felony, to-wit: Viol. of Section 18.1-91
(Armed Robbery), was led to the bar in the custody of the
jailor of this Court. '

Whereupon the accused was arra}gncd and after
private consultation with Kenneth C. Hogge, counsel herctofore

appointed by the Court, pled not guilty to the indictmcnt;

o ————— - —— — ———— -

which plea was tendered by the accused in pérson, and thereupon

the accused after having been first advised by his attorney,

[ ——

waived trial by jury and with the concurrence of the Assistant
Attorney for the Commonwealth and the Court, here entered or
record, the Court proceeded to hear and determine the casae
without thq‘;ntervention of a jury, as provldcd by law, and
having heard the evidence doth f{nd the accused guilty of

Viol. of Section 18.1-91 (Armed Robbery) as charged in the

L. e ——

indictment, and ascertainslhis punishment to be Fifteen .(15)
years in the State penitentiary. ' _ : \. ;E
And it being demanded of the accused if anything i
for himself he had or knew to say why judgment should nct.pe
pronounced against him according to law, and nothing being’
offered or alleged in delay of judément, it is accordingly i
the judgment of this Court that the said Cosme Martinez be and i
he is hereby sentenced to confinement in tha penitentinry of |
this Commonwealth for the term of Fifteen (15) years, the po}iod i
by the Court ascertained as aforesaid, and that the Commonwoaltﬁ éf

of Virginia do recover against the said Cosme Martinez itsoom



CUsLs8 Ly AT aDOuUrL 1ts8 prosecution in this behalf oxpended,

And it is further ordered that as moon as possible

after the entry of this order the prisoner ba removed and
safely conveyed according to law from the jail of this Court to

the said penitentiary, therein to be kept, confined and troeated

- —— - — 4

in the manner provided by law,

The Court certifies that at all times during the -

trial of this case the accused was personally present,

This éentenca is to run concurrently with the

I sentence the defendant is currently éerving in the stato of
i Texas, but not with any sentence of this Court or any other
! Court, | ' : B, @ . -
i

I

|

I

|

| :

| "  And the prisoner. is remanded to jail,
l ' B

|



SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEws. VA.

(The Court Reporter

was duly sworn.)

(The Defendants were

present, seated at counsel

4 |
& table.) i
6 COURT: All right, gentlemen, that ﬂ
7 brings us to the matter of the Commonwealth of Virginia E
8 against Henri Ortiz, two indictments; the matter of the |
9 Commonwealth of Virginia against Cosme Martinez., The

10 Commonwealth ready?

11 MR. DUFF: Yes sir. -

12 » COURT: The Defendants ready? :
13 MR. HOGGE: Yes sir. ‘ .
14 COURT: All right. Mr. Martinez, i
15 will you stand, please? |
16 (At this time, the :
17 Defendant stood.) :
18 COURT: You are Cosme Martinez?

19 MR. C. MARTINEZ: Yes sir.

20 COURT: How old are you, Mr. Martinez?
21 MR. C. MARTINEZ: Twenty-eight.
22 COURT: What?

23 MR. C. MARTINEZ: Twenty-eight.

24 COURT: What year or grade in school

25 did you complete?

i E R iideedss 000007




SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, VA.

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. C. MARTINEZ: Seventh grade.

COURT: Where was that?

MR, C. MARTINEZ: 1In Texas.

COURT: Where in Texas?

- MR. C. MARTINEZ: Beeville.

COURT: Beeville. All right. All
right, now, you have had placed against you two indictments.
One for murder and one for robbery. Are you familiar with
these indictments?

MR. C. MARTINEZ: Yes sir,

COURT: Do you understand what they
mean? .

MR. C, MARTINEZ: Yes sir.

COURT: All right. Mr. Hogge has
been appointed to represent you. Have you had sufficient
time to confer with him and prepare yourself for trial
today?

MR. C. MARTINEZ: Yes sir.

COURT: Were there any witnesses you
wanted present to testify for you who are not here?

MR, C. MARTINEZ: No sir.

COURT: Are you ready for trial now?

MR. C. MARTINEZ: Yes sir.

COURT: Remain standing for the

arraignment.

000008
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, VA.

]

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

CLERK: Cosme Martinez, the CGrand
Jurors, regularly impanelled and sworn, in and for the
body of the City of Hampton, have found the following
indictment against you. That Cosme Martinez, on the 23rd
day of September, in the year 1973, in the said City of
Hampton, Virginia, on Thomas L., Uzzell did feloniously make
an assault by the threat and presenting of deadly weapons
and instrumentalities, to-wit: a gun and a knife, he, the
salid Thomas L, Uzzell, in bodily fear feloniously did put,
and money, United States Currency, of the value of One
Hundred Fifty Dollars, the denominations of such money being
to the Grand Jurors unknown, of the goods, chattels and
Property of the Hess Service Station, 3300 West Mercury
Boulevard, Hampton, Virginia, in the care, custody and
control of said Thomas L. Uzzell, an employee of the Hess
Service Station, 3300 West Mercury Boulevard, Hampton,
Virginia, and from the person and against the will of the
sajd Thomas L. Uzzell, then and there, to-wit: on the
day and yvear aforesaid, in the city aforesaid, feloniously
and violently d4id steal, take, carry away and rob, in
violation of Section 18,1-91 of the Code of Virginia of
1950, as amended, against the peace and dignity of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

How say you, are you guilty of the

felony whereof you stand indicted, or not guilty?

..~ 000009
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEwWPORT NEWS, VA.

o

11

12

13

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. C. MARTINEZ: Not guilty.

CLERK: Cosme Martinez, the Grand
Jurors, regularly impanelled and sworn, in and for the
body of the City of Hampton, have found the following
indictment against you. That Cosme Martinez, on the 23rd
day of September, 1973, in the said City of Hampton,
Virginia, did unlawfully and feloniously kill and murder
Thomas L. Uzzell, to-wit: by shooting and stabbing, in
violation of Section 18.1-21 of the Code of Virginia of
1950, as amended, against the peace and dignity of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

» How say you, are you guilty of the

felony whereof you stand indicted, or not guilty?

MR. C. MARTINEZ: Not guilty.

COURT: All right. The pleas of
not guilty as to both these indictments will be recorded.

Now, Mr. Martihez, in view of your
pleas, you have the choice or option to be tried on these
charges by a jury or to waive trial by jury and be tried
by the Court. Have you talked to Mr. Hogge about this?

' MR, C. MARTINEZ: Yes sir.
COURT: Do you understand the. choice

that you have?
MR. C. MARTINEZ: Yes sir.
COURT: All right. Do you want to

000010
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, VA.

have a trial by jury or you wish to waive trial by jury?
MR. C. MARTINEZ: I wish to waive,
waive,
COURT: Has this been thoroughly
discussed, Mr. Hogge?
MR, HOGGE: Yes sir.
COURT: Does the Commonwealth concur
in the waiver?
MR. DUFF: We so concur,
COURT: As does the Court. The
record will so reflect,
, There's one other matter, Mr. Martine%.
You have been indicted and been arraigned and pled to
certain charges this morning. Henri Ortiz, who is sitting
next to you there, has also been indicted for the same
crime. Now, you are entitled, if you wish, to a separate
trial. If you and Mr., Ortiz both wish the charges against
you to be heard at the same time, and if the Commonwealth
does not object, we will allow that to go that way. But
if you want to have separate hearings, you may also do
that.
Have you talked to Mr. Hogge about
this, 3r do you want to talk to him again first?
4 MR. C. MARTINEZ: TIt's all right.
COURT: Together?

000011
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS. VA

10

11

13

14 |

15

16

17

18

MR, C. MARTINEZ:

COURT:

MR. HOGGE:

COURT:
the Commonwealth?

MR,

COURT:
Martinez.

DUFF:

Yes sir,
Mr. Hogge?
Yes sir.

Is that satisfactory with

Yes, your Honor.

You may have a seat, Mr.

(At this time, Mr.

Martinez took his seat.)

COURT:
Ortiz stood up.)
COURT:
MR, H.
COURT:
MR. H.
COURT:

Mr, Ortiz.

(At this time, Mr.

You are Henri Ortiz?
ORTIZ: Yes sir.

How old are you?
ORTIZ: Twenty-six, sir,

Twenty-six. What grade or

year in school did you complete?

MR. H.
in college.

COURT:
school?

MR. H.

COURT:

ORTIZ: Thirteenth. One year

You graduated from high

ORTIZ: No sir, Army.

All right. What school, what

dmpaistdl g i -

00001<
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS. VaA.

13

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

22
23
24

25

Ortiz took his seat.)
COURT: All right, gentlemen, what
witnesses do you want sworn?
MR. DUFF: If your Honor please,
Mr., Williams, Sergeant Jones and Lieutenant Bailey.
(At this time, the
witnesses were called and duly
sworn. )
COURT: You want the witnesses
separated, gentlemen?
MR, HOGGE: Beg your pardon?
, COURT: You want the witnesses
separated?
MR. HOGGE: Yes sir.
COURT: 1I'll ask the witnesses to go
with the Bailiff, please.
(At this time, the
witnesses were excluded from
the Courtroom.)
COURT: All right, gentlemen, do you
wish to conduct an opening?
MR. DUFF: The Commonwealth waives
opening argument, your Honor.
MR. HOGGE: 1I'll waive the openiqg.
COURT: All ;ight, sir.

sotnsse 000013]
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, VA,

10

11

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

[Rv]
ot

MR. DUFF: If your Honor please,
the Commonwealth at this time, with no objection by the
Defense Counsel, would ask to introduce the Commonwealth
Exhibits Number One and Two, Exhibit Number One, the report'
of the examination of the medical examiner.

COURT: Any objection to this, Mr.
Hogge?

MR. HOGGE: No sir.

COURT: Commonwealth's Exhibit
Number One is admitted in evidence.

(At this time, the

report of the medical examiner
was reééived and marked as Com-
monwealth's Exhibit Number One.)
MR. DUFF: Exhibit Number Two, the
report of autopsy, chief medical examiner.
COURT: Mr, Hogge?
MR. HOGGE: No objection.
COURT: Commonwealth Exhibit Number
Two is admitted in evidence.
(At this time, the
autopsy report was received
and marked as Commonwealth's
Exhibit Number Two.)

COURT: Just one moment.

000014
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEwWS, VA,

15

(At this time, the
Court perused the documents.)

COURT: All right, sir.

MR. DUFF: 1If your Honor please, the
Commonwealth would call its first witness as Sergeant Jones.

COURT: Sergeant Jones.

MR. HOGGE: 1If it please the Court,
there will be statements made by both Defendants. I would
like to point out they should not be used against each

9
10 Defendant, because they were not in the presence of each
1 of them.
19 COURT: All right, it will be so
13 considered.
14
15 - -
16
17 SERGEANT ISAAC L. JONES, called as a
18 witness by the Commonwealth, being duly sworn, testified
19 as follows:
20
21 DIRECT EXAMINATION
22
23 BY MR, DUFF:
24 Q State your full name, please, sir.
25 A Isaac L. Jones,
000015
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING

NEWPORT NEWS. VA. SGT., I. L. JONES = DIRECT

16

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Q And by whom are you employed, sir?

A Hampton Police Division.

Q What capacity?

A Patrol Sergeant.

Q All right. Sergeant Jones, were you

employed by the Hampton Police Department on September 30th

of last year, sir?

A Yes sir, I was,

Q On that particular day, did you
interrogate Cosme Martinez?

A Permission to refer to my notes?

Q » Do so.

A Yes sir, I did.

Q All right, Sergeant Jones, where

did this interrogation take place?
A In Beeville, Texas.
_ Q All right, sir, and what matter were
you investigating at that time?
A I was investigating the robbery of
the Hess Station on West Mercury Boulevard and the murder
of Thomas Uzzell,
Q All right, sir. Sergeant Jones, I --
(At this time, a docu-
ment was exhibited to Defense

Counsel.)

ALt e lat . A A e LY EE PRS- ]
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, VA,

SGT. I. L. JONES - DIRECT

17

13

14 -

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

BY MR. DUFF:

Q I show you this, and ask you whether
those rights (indicating) were read to Mr. Martinez?

A Yes sir, they were.

Q And did you engage in the interroga-
tion on the pages following so?

A Yes sir, I did.

MR, DUFF: All right. At this time,
if your Honor please, I would ask to introduce, for
identification purposes only, as Commonwealth's Exhibit
Number Three,

» COURT: Mark it for identification,
Commonwealth's Exhibit Number Three.
(At this time, the
warning and statement were re-
ceived and marked as Common-
wealth's Exhibit Number Three,
for identification.)

MR. DUFF: Thank you, your Honor.

BY MR, DUFF:

Q Who was present at the time of the
interrogation, sir?

A The Defendant and Lieutenant G. V.
Bailey.

Q All right, sir. On the third paga

000017
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SCHNEIDER REFORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING

NEWPORT NEWS, VA. SGT. I. L- JONES - DIRECT

18

of Commonwealth Exhibit Number Three, some questions
apparently were posed to the Defendant. Did Lieutenant

Bailey pose some of those questions, sir?

A Yes sir, he did.

Q Were you present at the time he so
questioned?

A Yes sir, I was.

Q All right, sir, 1Is this the extent

of the interrogation of this particular Defendant in this
matter?
A Yes sir,

MR. DUFF: Prior to introduction
into evidence, your Honor, I give Defense Counsel an
opportunity to cross examine.

MR. HOGGE: 1I don't have any ques=-
tions to ask the Officer.

COURT: All right, sir.

MR. DUFF: 1I ask to introduce Com=
monwealth's Exhibit Number Three into evidence at this
time.

COURT: 1Is there objection?

MR. HOGGE: No sir. I have read
it with the Defendant, and it is what was said.

COURT: All right, sir. Common-
wealth's Exhibit Number Three, consisting of page entitled

000018
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO
STENOTYPE REPORTING

NEWPORT NEWS, VA, SGT., I. L. JONES - DIRECT

19

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

[S~]
¥

warnings, a page entitled voluntary statement, and a page

of questions and answers will be admitted in evidence,

there being no objection.

(At this time, the

warning and statement were re-

ceived and marked as Common-

wealth's Exhibit Number Three.)

BY MR. DUFF:

Q Officer Jones, on September 30,

1973, in Beeville, Texas, did you have occasion to speak

with the Defendant, Ortiz?

A » Yes sir, I did.

Q And did you interrogate him, sir?

A Yes sir, I did.

Q All right. Did he give you a state-
ment, sir?

A Yes sir, he did.

Q And are these -- I ask you to take

a look. Are these the rights that were read to him, sir?

A Yes sir.

Q And the next two pages, are those

the statements which he gave?

A Yes sir, they are.

Q All right, sir.
this time?

Who was present at

B o T o LR R S




SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, Va.

SGT. I. L. JONES - DIRECT

3

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

used on the old man at the station. The only other knives
in the car were a butter knife and a small knife that you
use on your fingernails.”

MR. DUFF: I ask to introduce the
written statement in evidence at this time, if your Honor
please.

MR. HOGGE: I have no objection to
that.

COURT: Commonwealth Exhibit Number
Four, consisting of page entitled warnings, page entitled -
two pages entitled voluntary statement, admitted in evidence
there being no objection.

(At this time, the

warning and statement were re-
ceived and marked as Common-
wealth Exhibit Number Four,)

COURT: All right.

MR. DUFF: At this time, as far as
this witness is concerned, your Honor, the Commonwealth
has no further questions.

COURT: May Sergeant Jones be
excused?

MR. HOGGE: I have no questions

from him.

MR. DUFF: I would ask that he remain|

" S RN e O Lo
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SCHNEIDER REFORTING CO.
STENOTYPE REPORTING

NewsoRT News. VA, SGT. I. L. JONES - DIRECT

24

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

if your Honor please.

COURT: All right. 1I'll ask you to
go back to the witness room, if you will, please.

Next witness.

MR. DUFF: If your Honor please, the
next witness will, in effect, be a stipulation with the
statements contained therein in Commonwealth's Exhibits
Numbers Three and Four would be corrcborative by witnesses
in the witness room at present.

COURT: Do the Defendants, both of
them, so stipulate?

» MR, HOGGE: Yes sir,

COURT: All right.

MR. DUFF: If your Honor please,
the Commonwealth rests.

MR. HOGGE: 1If it please the Court,
at this point, on behalf of the Defendant, Henri Ortiz,
on his statements, which do not implicate him in any manner,
other than being present. Of course, mere presence does
not constitute a violation of the law. I would ask the
Court to strike the evidence on both the charges against
Henri Ortiz at this point.

MR. DUFF: If your Honor please,
at this time the Commonwealth would merely state the
evidence presented to the Court is everything we possibly

oo 000021
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SCHNEIDER REPORTING CO
STENOTYPE REPORTING
NEWPORT NEWS, VaA.

25

10

11

12
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can have, and I think it certainly shows the position that
the accident -- I'm sorry, at the murder scene was certainly
in close proximity thereto, and ask the Court to take that
into consideration.

COURT: All right, anything further,
Mr. Hogge?

MR, HOGGE: No sir, I don't believe
so. The Court has had an opportunity to hear the statement.

COURT: All right. Mr. Ortiz, if
you will please stand. _

(At this time, Mr,

Ortiz stood.)

COURT: On motion of your counsel,
consideration of the evidence thus far adduced by the
Commonwealth against you, the Court strikes the evidence
of the Commonwealth as to the charges against you, and the
charges are dismissed.

You may have a seat over there by
Mr. Cross.

MR. HOGGE: If it please the Court,
we do not desire to put on any evidence on behalf of Mr,
Martinez,

COURT: I understand the Defendant,
Martinez, rests. Consequently, there will be no rebuttal.

" The witnesses in the witness room may be excused.

s o - 0000R<
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All right, gentlemen, you wish to
comment?

MR. DUFF: The only thing the Com-
monwealth can say, your Honor, certainly by the -- state-
ment of the Defendant, Martinez, you heard the stipulation,
that said statement would be corrcborated, as well as the
causes of death and the like shown in the autopsy and
medical examiner's report, I belleve that the Defendant
ought to be found guilty on both counts,

MR. HOGGE: 1If 1t please the Court,
I decline to say anything in opposition to that in light of
his statement. »

COURT: Well, all right, Mr,
Martinez, i1f you will stand, please.

(At this time, Mr.

Martinez stood,)

COURT: Cosme Martinez, on the basis
of the evidence adduced concerning the charges against you,
the Court finds you guilty of the offense of robbery, as
set forth in the indictment, upon which you have been tried
today. The Court finds you gullty of the offense of murder,
as set forth in the indictment, upon which you have been

tried today.

Is there anything you want to say

before sentence is imposed?

';-‘A:!._ 3 000023
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MR. C. MARTINEZ: No sir.

COURT: You may have a seat.

Do either of you gentlemen wish to
comment any further as to -- proper disposition, or does
this man wish to have a presentence investigation report
ordered and considered before sentence is imposed? He
has that right, if he wants to.

MR. HOGGE: We will waive the pre-
sentence report.

COURT: All right. Has == there is
scme information I would like to have concerning this
before imposing sentence. Let me inquire of counsel, and
if the Defendant does not wish to disclose, I suppose Itll
accede to that. 1I'd like to know what other charges are
now pending against him here or at other states. If the
answer to that, none, I'd like to know what other sentences
or convictions he now labors under in other states.

MR, HOGGE: He has nothing pending.

COURT: Nothing pending. Has he
been convicted or sentenced for soﬁething he has not yet
served?

MR. HOGGE: He is convicted in the
State of Texas of robbery and sentenced to thirty years.

COURT: Thirty years?

MR. HOGGE: Yes sir,

T S G e
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COURT: 1Is there any portion of that
sentence been served?

MR. HOGGE: I imagine he's getting
credit for time he's spending up here.

COURT: Other than that?

MR. HOGGE: 1I donft believe so.

COURT: All right, gentlemen, any-
thing - anything else either of you gentlemen wish to say
about the matter?

MR. DUFF: No, the only thing the
Commonwealth would say, because of the crimes involved,
certainly we would request a heavy imposition in the
number of years.

MR. HOGGE: 1If it please the Court,
I would -~ like to ask the Court, in light of the fact
that he does have thirty years to serve in the State of
Texas, it is my understanding you do serve three-quarters
of it down there, that any sentencing imposed upon this
men today in this Court be allowed to run concurrently
with any previously imposed sentence.

COURT: All right, sir. If that
information is correct, it will be sometime after the year
1990 before this man can look for any --

MR. HOGGE: That's my understanding.
I think the Commonwealth Attorney will corroborate that with
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a letter.

MR. DUFF: Yes, your Honor, we ask,
for purposes of what sentencing, that this particular letter
be introduced to the Court.

COURT: Mr. Hogge, are you familiar
with the document?

MR. HOGGE: Yes sir, I looked at it.

COURT: 1Is there any objection to
the Court considering this in connection with the sentence?

MR, HOGGE: No sir, I would like for
you to.

» (At this time, the
Court read the letter.)

COURT: 1It's a record -- a letter
from Texas Department of Correction, dated December 7, 1973,
which indicates the minimum discharge for Mr. Martinez on
the sentence in Texas is September 28, 1991.

All right, Mr. Martinez, if you will
stand, please,

(At this time, Mr,

Martinez stood.)

COURT: On your conviction for the
crime of murder, the Court sentences you to serve a term
of fifteen years in the State Penitentiary of this State.
For your conviction of the crime of robbery, the Court

000026
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sentences you to serve a term of fifteen years in the State
Penitentiary of this State.

These sentences are not to run
concurrently with each other, but are to run concurrently
with the sentence already imposed upon you in the State of
Texas.

All right, gentlemen.

The prisoner is remanded to the
custody of the Sheriff for return to the Texas authority.

Mr, Ortiz is also in that situationm,
is he not, for the sentence and execution already in
Texas? All right. .

(At this time, the

Court was adjourned.)
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1AaidllAGS 'fO BE GIVEN BEFURED COMMEUCEHLNT OT IRTERROGATION THCLDLNT w0 e
TALING OF EITIUER AN ODRAL OR VRIWTEN COITISHLOM BY PEACE OFFILLR OR n1io.

RUPRCSENTING STHAIE

You are being hald in custody on an accusation that you ¢ kitic]
the oZfense of __Myrder of Thomas Uzzell in Hampton. , Virginia

Under the law we have the right to ask you for your per:
question you but before we do so it is our duty to give you

=

ing warnings about your rights:

You have the right to remain silent and not malic
statement at all and anything you say and anv stats
you make can and will be used in evidencc against you
at your trial in court. You have the right to talk to

a lawyer for advice before we ask you any questions

and to have him with. you during questioning. 1f you are
¥inancially unable to employ a lawycr you have ‘the right
to have one appointed free of charge to repiesz=nt you
and counsel with you before and during any quaestioning.
If you decide to permit us to question you and obtzin

a statement from you without your first consulting a
lawyer and without your having a lawysr present durc-

ing questioning, you will still have the right to
refuse to answér any question you do not wish to

answer and also you will still have the right to

stop answering questlons altogether any time you

'w1sh to do so.

)JESTIONS TO BE ASKED AFTER FOREGOINC INARNINGS HAVE BEEN GIVEN AXD BIFORE
ZOEAENCEMENT OF INTERROGATION:

Do.you fully understand what you have just been told? (/o4 .

Bearing in mind the warnings that I have just read to you, are vou
'illing for me to guestion you and obtain a statement from ycu? _%/Aq 5

2

J%%W _ | ,\4 )(/‘5
U0, o
@” T
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VOLUN'TARY STATILMERT

i A
Cosme Martinez.._
PELNGE CIARGED AGAINST ACCUSDD:  wyrder .
A OF COIFICER WHO CGAVE WARNINGS:  Teledonmes ...~~~
LACE WATLIINSGS GIVEN: CITY OF J@gyggé_wu,ﬁ_ﬁﬁJ Bee Couanty, Texas
\I'E WARNINGS GIVEN: THE  30th DAY" OF _ September 1973
[/1E WARNINGS GIVEN: AT 1:00 o'clock, P i,

At the above mentioned date, time and p ace tne abive neatiorne
“ficer, after telling ime I was being held in custody on an accu~¢L*0ﬁ

12t I committed the above mentioned offcnse, called to my attention the
[RAIIDA WARNING copied on the back of this pige and read tc me the warn-
1ys set forth in that warning about my rights and then askcd me the two

< 1

1ostions printed below that warning and I dnprre& "y Lo cach ol
10se questions, doing so of iy own frce will and accord without heing
wduced to do so by any compulsion, persuasion, tnroahs 07 promises and
111y understaﬁdlng that by doing so I was giving up th ‘igh:s O0f mine
»ntioned in those warnings and that anything I miaght !nhrha ter say to
i could and would be used in evidence against me in court at my trial.
> then asked me more questions and cauced the following statemsnt to
» prepared to show various answers I gave him. In making those answers
acted of my own free will and accorxd without being inducacd to do so by
y compulsion, persuasion, threats or promises.We were driving around town, so
rulled into this filling station. I had about L or 5 dollars in my pocketo I tell him
put in $1,50 of gas. So Henry gets out of the car and goes to the rest rocm. He come
"k out and tell me to get the gun. As soon as I got the gun it went of by itself. He told
to pull it on that old man.So Henry told me to tzke him behind the station.That old man
started giving me the money.That old man sat down on that floor or corcrete or something.
Fenry told me to shoot him betwecn the eyes and the ear. So I don't ¥row the gun went off
itselfs I had it pointed at him. I cut him on the reck or his hcad or face. Henry and
2z tried to drive off and I jumped in the car through the windouw.VWe drcve off and dropped

2z about a block from his apartment.
{ :Q’&rﬂ.& %ﬂ,ﬁ;’&
“

A A
_nessess ‘N ﬁ &m/{:w

X/ 9
J
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Q.
A.

Qe
A.

Q.
Ao

e
A.

Qe
A.

Q-
Q.
Ao

Qe
A‘.

Qo
A,

te Bailey

It. Bailey

It.Bailey
UIIC ,7.'.

I.L.Jones
QCUQDI:,ZCO

I.L.Jones

...L:.m.o

I.L.Jones

I.L.Jones
ooogoéfﬂ-.

Lt.Bailey
IOICJAQOO

I.L,Jones

deseseedeosd

I.L.Jones

O'IC’{?.OO

I.L.Jones

Cesoesssenved

Lt. Bailey
.OOOQOﬂ.o

Lt.Bailey
ID.Q.IIUO

Beeville,Texas

I show you this yellow handled krife and ask you is this the knife

you cut the man with?
Thats the knife,because thats the only one streight like that,

Where was Henry when you shot the mun?
He was standing right next to me.

¥What is Henry's last name?
Ortiz.

ttho else was with you and Kemry Ortiz?
Just Diaz.

Did Diaz see you take the man around beck at ;unpoint?
Yes he was sitting in the front seat of the c-r on the right hand side.

Who was driving the car when you left the service stztion 7
Henry COrtiz

Did Diaz make any statcments after the robbery?
He told us to drop him off he didn't want anything to do with it.

Do you remember how much meney you got?
It was about $110 or $115 .

Who was the money handed to?

As soon as I got out of the car and the gun went off the man handed

me the money.Then Herry told me to take him in back of the station.
Ed

ATter you got in trouble in Texas what did you do with the gun?
I hid the gun; my brother fourd it and threw it in the trash.The
trash was pickcd up and taken to the durp.

What day or date did this haipen?

It was early on the 23 Q£1Suj‘ nber 1973,

Have yo heen promised any special favors, inumnity , or reuzrds
for having made thecse statements?

No, I am doing this to get it off of my mind.

Are the statcnents you gave irue to the best of your knowledge?
Yes,sir.

statement been read bLack to you?

g pe P elerin
=

Has the above
Yes N

— JO{%M/
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TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

HUNTSVILLE., TEXAS 77340

December 7, 1973

Sheriff's Office
Hampton, Virginia

Dear Sir:

Notations have been made on our records showing that Our

MARTINEZ, Cosme
No. 236582

will be wanted by your office upun his release from this institution.
You will be notified thrity days prior to the release of this subject

s0 that you may have aun officer here to take him into custody.

Minimum discharge date is ‘f/z 5’/4?/
s 7 !
Yours very truly, S
Y g
Bureau of Records & I iFation
P
By clh , Deputy

vc— Board of Pardons and Paroles
Austin, Texas

Warden, Huntsville Unit
Huntsville, Texas

Machine Accounting

Huntsville, Texas

Unit Warden
Inmate  pjagnostic
File
RO-17
/
™~
)



Ex Ryrte fExgH’H Circut Court

-WCOSme; Martinez | of the City of Hampton,

=

EQ <T ConvicTron PAePiicaTIon For
WRIT oF Hageds CorPUS

- W50

H o s

To THe HomerAaRLE Juoei OF SAID COURT

¥

COM ES NOU)) CO.SNJ(:_ Mar'l": l\!cz_)
T"W-r-:wchr referred as APPLICANT 1N The
Ctbu\/c_,-.:%'l“y loel aned mummbered cases and

P ooty tThis appliceton for Post - Gonuichon

—

,U—\“-"*+ oA HHokers Gor PUS Under The directons

()‘f‘ ﬂﬂ.:f V]ff’j{lqla C_()C_I(' o‘f‘ Cr;m.m(xl H‘ogc'duf'c-
P rPLzcAd T (ouuld res pPec +1(1H)/ ~how andl
Sweers 1o The Caurts as ‘Follouob .

‘ ONE TITNEFMENT AN»D ~RE$TRF¢;MT :

.“M‘\\-\‘_ ) "
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APPLICAMT is unlowhully confinec and
restraimcel of his hb(—.‘r-f/\/ b)/ QH)/N R :Sbc;\a‘ﬁf_,
Gctiiig 1ad s O‘F‘ch;l f.op-:’.-et'i')/ as Dicector of
Hne \/(fjrjmnr:\ Dc'pori‘mcl'ﬁ*‘ of C;-,rr-;’chor\l.s Pur.Suon‘\'
o a Judﬁﬁrﬂcnﬂ_‘r ol ;,onw-ches\k 1ol the
Commonice i oF Virguuia Voo Cosme Marhnez,

S

Hithe Eigith Gt Gour T ob he Ciby of Homplun,

Homptown Vlr‘ﬂlNla }‘E)r' the offemses ofF Murder
and A rcmcd Robbcr)/, (Ql'fh{)ujh APPLIcANT

(s (.urrchr\)/ confined v the Texas Department
O'F COFF?C*"OMS, Mr ﬂl\ym R SIQlGH, meintains
{xr-sd.chm and Cus+'0c|/ by way of a Neni-detaimer ”

ol which he caused t be Platccl TN my Texas
Depor+wer\+ of Gorrechoms p|c) The Court asscssed
Sentemces at g-ﬂ_cm C15) Yoo s g)r coch offewse Qgr
G tote!l sentecnce of “thir {‘/ (30) ‘/CO"S The Q‘Ft)rcr*r)rn%omccl
Senterice was o run cmz_urrcr\Jrl/ with the ‘H‘nr+>/ (20)
_YEar Serﬂ‘mce APPLICANT was thew Sc-rWMj o the
State of —E’_.xo_&) Dgﬁp‘cjri-m( ~+ of Correchons. No
Copy of Ind e Fnent ')uda'c-jmcf-ﬁ- Gnd sentence or
trial stetement of -ﬁnd'.si\-“are attoched hereto
05 Said documents are unavailable to APPLICANT,
however, +he Ortat_ﬂals are availoble to the

H/COURT +hrou3ln +he Files of the Clerk.

11
_&&mﬂ_ps For RecrzeF

APPLICHMT‘S Convichon under his Plea (s)

ofF " Not Guity ' are invelid \w thot C 000033
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(ﬁ QPPLlcde was decnied cf(cc_%\/c 03515+an)c=.
0')C Cfour"'— Oppo|n+ccl c,ounsr:.l g

(2) F\PPLI(_AATB e,\qchou and decision +o be
tried bY the COURT rather thawm aJur)/
was based on COUNSEL'S InNstruchon
that APPLICANT would recewe the some

: Hhirty (30) year seatence he (APPLICANT)

Was Hhen Serving \wW +he. —rcxavs Depor‘h‘nc-n"'
of Cerrechons ) énd , furthermore , the
APPLICANT wWould Not be returwed 1o
the JurnS.cluc_-Hm\l of Va?cj.mna UpoN
Comple honl of his Texas senfence .

STatemiuT of THE CASE

ON or about Junc 21, qn e SYPRIN (:)&‘\'rodlc‘hor\l
'Frr)m. He o Pp— 0{ -_l'_cxos) Pphze + was C"‘C’_r‘j"d
with the offenses of Mufc[(‘lr Grd Rrmed Ruhbcr/

by the (Au'h'\nr‘l'bt“f\ Fciarcscn"ﬁ‘-r\\g the C)r'nmafo_p)cal‘fh
IL-‘-L Vtr‘jwao T\:\u$) +'UJO hxic{.c_'*'mf-ﬂ'{’.& LilvrC f'f:‘l'u_rN cd
57/ the Groncdd Jurrors of +|’7‘3,,C'+‘j ot Humptonl,
VIl‘ﬁislnﬂ r‘f\af‘cjm(;) APrLIcAnT with the offenses

Q'F Mtzfﬁlrr lala rrmect F(oh'bf’f}/

Hewce APPLIcANT, GnN wdigent ioyrnaa\)
o s CAch.m'f’cd Al G'Hormc/ . Mr Kenncth C H‘Di‘-ﬁc_)
+o Undlectzke APPLICANT's defense {'CPrcscn'bhor«i

APPLIcanT conferred +wice with Mr FHogqe rc:qurd\;-\q
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the Cose. Ltwos Counsel s posihion Tom INe ouTsar,

_‘l‘_'}'sa‘_i'_‘i'hcrc Wosn't much hecould do W way of aﬁ B -
..dClCC“S€~ Mr H'Uaac. ;ﬂ&rmec\_‘HPPl_llc.nMT ‘l'm't'
he CcuunseLl) had waferred with the Judge

( Hon Nelson T Over ‘\"_DM\ F?’cs\d“uﬁ OW("H\C_ Cause
and the judﬂq hod Communicated ¢ ple - ogrec -
|| Mment vaith Py (COUM.SE__L) _1?\01‘_‘ APPLIcanT
could plead ™ Not Guilty " j?_bE_Q!‘\o,(c‘ﬁ*s (e~

)

|| both wdickements, however, he (APPLICANT)
oot Bedound " Guilty " by the COURT , and
would be assessed punishment ot Hm-‘l‘)r (30)

] ‘{CCMS, J’.)ow:.ucr, Said 5en+en<.e, would run ConN-
lleurcent with the +har'+)} (30) yeor Sentenice
||APPLICANT was Serving in the State of Texas -
||Moreover, CounsEL 'm{zrmcd APPLICANT thot
llwhen his sentence ends 1n the State of Texas,
|lso the .3(&31:\“& &n'i‘.cngq would end as well
Insoforas the Stnte of Vl}suuna would a'jrcc.
:I_'D Oﬁ)/ relecse shpulohbus anvhated by the

Gutharihies 1 the Stete of Texos Evenso, \
the: :Yudg,:..(H.bN Nelaont .T:\OVcr'f'oN ) H'cmd.nj g TN

e
g

Over my. canse orderedl m.'x‘_app.eorawcc Wit
{lhis chamber and ‘H\crcb){ conhrmed the aqree.=
mecat. The Hon Nelsont T Overbon C\u\)l admonished
apg.\u.oﬁf Hhot he C APPLICAM T) Was Neuec 1o
lset foot withiu Hhe provicnce of the Common-

UJCO"H’\ O'F VI;’qn\ho . .
Conse .ucni'l)/, _.QRPLILHNT Ms.guqd 3u'.\+y

ond was 1imposcd a: _+h.r+)/ (30) year sentence,
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ng:a 4il.'rs!s»m;~ afcs‘ ai' ﬁne. Tmsa'
,e.pgd:ma:t a:F Corrcc.i(ous ofter HPPL:L:;-QN_:
.o.d S:ﬂlc.d Calr.mdcr' 'hmc, Gm°un+a~j h':?Ncqu,"
el (lol years, be CBPPLICB.&T) mas.gmafchd:j-v-_”_

J’e l:,asc._ nN_PsL_o e, 1y the yaac 1983, and_aﬂou.d..__ s _

i 1984 ﬂm&vcr the Vicginia Pnrol; Boaed -~

t

i
£

i of Vi

-—t 4 L

obJec.‘l'e:d + APPLIcANTS. release urLcr +he
Texas guthorihes . Now, APPLICANT has

| Served Cnoush colonder hme. v accrue 3ooc|

-"‘lmc.‘l'b‘hllinj 'hmr*'y &) Years .ond hs .
”(nanda'l'bry' relecase 1s soow Upconi j
View of these Qd‘ors t+he. Commonweat‘ﬂ'\
- ol Dtpar‘l‘rnerd' of Cacrection bas..

- 1.1*..:._....._.,_

]Ddscd O Or'nsl" QPPLICJ'\MT G NOnN- dc.“’aus.\cr -
huld' u.;hach w.H PrcuCnT APPLICNANT s

| PefessE o Mandoi-or)/ Supcrv:simo under---% VEANNE
| stote of Txas Pardle aws. . e

l

B e e p e — = ——————

-]T'us +h€. Saud ach ohJs o‘lc ‘H\e. Commmowco. \'H'\

| i ,
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A ohin was n'rprcscn'f'edixi?'HEPLI(.&MT by bo‘l‘bf_:_ :
i ] COUMSEL andi "I'hc. Tuda"-i‘;}.P_rcSJdmj '

AEPuc.nu:r mai u-l-mdg;l:ba{' the __a;;mhaag bot e
Prowdcd h}‘ his C.OUR’T-ﬂPPQINTED CounsEL.
‘Fe.ll -Far bclouQ 'H'\e, MINN‘nUm standord re ulFCd

by Hhe. Sixbhy Dimmendment s, RIcHs. Th EEEecrave
ASSISTANCE OF coumseEL .. APPLICANT asserts that

lhis conuichon In said cause is therefore invalid,
4 Hhat his COURT-APPOINTED CounSEL AND
S-udﬁ@fprcsml; aq induced. bhir. Into. accephiag . a
CourT TRIAL b 3rossl mmlm-ﬁxmuuj APPLICANT
llasto the lauws in rda:l:mu_'b_"'h& 'Qd _:f:bc._t.'ase._g__ ~
o __AprLacanT will po_n+ out, COURT- APPOINTED
COUNSE L rmsm(ormcd ArPPLICANT +hat bccwu::c.
LH’PP_LICANT.S Sentence Would ruw C.oNcurl‘cn'H)/
fwl"'h hls TC.XGS an+cncc 'H‘\0+ uPOrJ C.Or'np\c‘}‘i onl

‘of his (APPLICANT) Texgs. gg;ﬂf;cnce , APPLICANT
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l_wou__ld bhasiE e Neer) O ra-l-t,nrmnoj -\-oi"he..
;,Comm_opl wealth of Vtrjau_lq becov se the latte
é..auth_o“rd—.)/ would ageee to any cclcase shpulohons
Andhated by the Statc of Texos authorihes
Furihermore, the Judge .P.Eé;iid\ﬂj CNelson T Over’rwl)
ic,omqr_ﬂ.':md CoOunsEL s 5..."97}2_‘;ncn+5. when he
E...c;.dmg_n'a_s.b.;d__ APPLICANT that be must ™ Never

i set oot 1 the, Gommoniweatdh of Vl-rg; ajllaT__‘_..r

|
assist

T aeeseel Lam.ye:r._ must actuall
;.C.l;.("n,'.‘f_JN. C|C<_1<l~_63__ _whef‘rwr 'h) EE'.QC-‘?-,S(_! ch?rg_:.

a Couctteiol or o Jury-Hrial by _Pr_ov"d'??&

him wih an ur\(\rrs-ﬁ-andma of the lawo, N

| J 0 c_..la&ia%\wfl'o_ the ﬁi sk £, 30 . 1Thag + any/ Suc "_" .

dearsion 15 crﬂ‘ajrecl VOIun"’or\l)/ ,Ond Knowlnﬂl_y)'
Gnd, advice which does NGT Pf'fm_d'__,‘O,CCU sedl
\LD.maKe. anl lr\il%r'n’wgd C_hok,_c'., j ﬂa{ls__ _bc!ouo
Minimum level Gnd the resulting clecision
connot be onsidered ‘[‘D be voluntar: \}(-
When APPLICANT Was rog..sl/ rsin formed
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.be allowed to return to Virginia, and that his understanding,

(T (j' 3«

VIRGINIA: IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF HAMPTON, PART I I,
COSME MARTINEZ,
Petitioner

V. AT LAW NO. 20500

EDWARD MURRAY, DIRECTOR
VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

Defendant

THIS DAY came Cosme Martinez, by counsel, and presented
to the Court a petition praying for a writ of habeas corpus and
subjiciendum, and, it appearing to the Court, upon reading the
petition of Cosme Martinez, which has been duly signed and
verified, upon the presentation of testimony by the petitioner
and Kenneth C. Hogge, who was the Court-appointed counsel at the
original trial on June 21, 1974, that

1. The claim by petitioner that there was ineffective
assistance of counsel has not been substantiated; and

2. Because of the petitioner's understanding, derived
from stateménts made by his counsel and the Commonwealth
Attorney, that what would happen if the Court accepted their
recommendation was that petitioner would return to Texas and,

when he satisfied the terms of his Texas sentence, he would not

although demonstrably erroneous, was reasonable, and, because of
his understanding, no real defense was presented to the charge,
and Cosme Martinez was effectively denied his right to a
voluntary election and decision to be tried by the Court rather
than a jury.

The Court finds probable cause to believe that Cosme

Martinez is illegally detained without lawful authority by Edward

Murray, and 000047
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It is, therefore, ORDERED that a writ of habeas corpus
and subjiciendum be, and the same hereby is, issued out of this
Court, directed to the said Edward Murray, commanding him to
produce the body of Cosme Martinez, unless the Commonwealth
Attorney expresses a desire to try the man again, then Petitioner
is to be released. Within sixty (60) days of the entry of this
order, the Commonwealth of Virginia is either to initiate
proceedings to retry petitioner or to release him from
incarceration. Said release is to become effective within sixty
(60) days of the entry of this Order, providing that Cosme
Martinez has in handg§ means to return to Texas.

In the event of an appeal herein, execution of this
judgment is stayed until the Supreme Court of Virginia renders an

opinion therein and its mandate issues.

ENTER this 1"" day of (_OJ-Z%

e

Judge
ACounsél for Petitioner

Sy 2bop aord gtgeck Ky,

Assistant Attorney General

A COPY, TESTE:
(C\\,7GiBSON, CLE%
. -~ 7

DEPUTY CLERK
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VIRGINIA:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE CITY OF HAMPTON, PART I

COSME MARTINEZ,
Petitioner,
v. AT LAW NO. 20500
EDWARD MURRAY, Director of
the Virginia Department of

Corrections,

Respondent.

NOTICE OF APPEAL

The respondent, Edward Murray, Director of the Virginia
Department of Corrections, hereby gives notice of appeal from the
judgment of this Court entereq’on October 2, 1986, and further
gives notice that the transcript covering the testimony and other
incidents of the plenary hearing is enclosed along with this

Notice of Appeal, all in compliance with Rules 5:9 and 5:11 of

the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia.

Respectfully submitted,
EDWARD MURRAY, Director of the

Virginia Department of Corrections,
Respondent herein.

By: WJW

Of Counsel

Robert B. Condon
Assistant Attorney General
Supreme Court Building

101 North Eighth Street
Richmond, Virginia 23219
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W



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This is to certify that on this 28th day of October, 1986, a
copy of the foregoing Notice of Appeal was mailed to Stephen F.
Forbes, Esquire, 2013 Cunningham Drive, Suite 230, Hampton,

Virginia 23666, counsel for petitioner.

Lottt L3, Concton

Robert B. Condon
Assistant Attorney General
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Assignments of Error

The trial court erred in granting the writ of habeas corpus
because:

1. The trial court's finding that no real defense to the
charges was presented at Martinez' criminal trial was unsupported
by any evidence at the plenary hearing that Martinez had any
viable defense to the charges.

2. The trial court's finding that Martinez was effectively
denied his right to a voluntary election to be tried by the court

rather than a jury at his criminal trial was plainly wrong.
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MR. FORBES: No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. So ordered.
Mr. Forbes.

MR. FORBES: Mr. Martinez, take the

stand, please.

COSME MARTINEZ,
the Petitioner, having been
first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. FORBES:

Q. State your name, please, sir.
A. Cosme Martinez.
Q. I'll have to ask you to speak as

loudly as you possibly can so the court reporter can
take down your testimony accurately and so the Court
can hear you.

A. Yes.

Qs Mr. Martinez, you have been in_this
courtroom once previously, have you not?

A. Yes, sirc.

Q. Do you recall when that was?

00005<
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A. Back in '74.

Qs Might it have been June the 21lst,
197472

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know a gentleman whose name 1is

Kenneth Hogge?

Bis Yes, sir.
Qs Who is he?
A. My attorney. That was my attorney

back in '74. B

Q. What advice, if any, did Mr. Hogge
give you with respect to your plea of guilty or not
guilty during yo%r trial in 197472

A I was told by him and the
Commonwealth attorney that if I was to plead not
guilty and be tried by a judge, that the sentence
that I was going to get here in Virginia would be
running concurrently with my Texas sentence. That
was a 30-year sentence. And that for me to do all
of my time in Texas and that I would -- Texas would
decide what to do with me after I did my time, that
was satisfied.

Q. Did he explain to you why it was that
he wanted you to plead not guilty as opposed to

guilty?
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A. That's all they told me. I could do

all my time down there in Texas.

Q. It's your testimony here today that

it was -- the Commonwealth attorney was present when

Mr. Hogge explained this to you?
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Did Mr. Hogge ever explain this

you or anything different than that?

to

THE COURT: What was the name of the

Commonwealth's attorney? e

BY MR. FORBES:
Q. Do you know the name of the
g
Commonwealth attorney at that particular time?

A. No, sir.

MR. FORBES: For the record, the

transcript would indicate it was Mr. Duff, Cha

H. Duff.

rles

THE COURT: Was it Mr. Duff, the man

who tried the case, or somebody else?
THE WITNESS: He tried my case.

THE COURT: Okay. Go ahead.

BY MR. FORBES:

Q. The gentleman that you were speaking --
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who was speaking with you jointly with Mr. Hogge was
the same gentleman that tried the case?

A. He wasn't a judge. He was a
Commonwealth's --

Q. I understand that, but listen to me
carefully. Was it the same gentleman that tried --
was it the same gentleman that tried the case, the

man who spoke with you and Mr. Hogge together?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. It was the same gentleman?
AL—““*zziff sir.

Q. Did Mr. Hogge or Mr. Duff indicate to

you that the agreement that they had reached was
subject to approval by the Court?

A. Yes, sir.

0 Did they tell you that it had to be
approved by the Court?

\\L A. Yes, sir.

Q. What sanctions did they indicate

would be placed against you if you came back here to
virginia? Did they tell you how that was supposed
to be imposed?

A. Well, they told me I wouldn't have to
come back to Virginia. If I were to plead not

guilty, I could do my time in Texas and never to

00003543
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come back to this state again. That was --

0. Did they tell you how much time you
would have to do in Texas?

A. No, sir.

0. Did those representations make any
difference to you as to whether you decided to
request that you have a jury trial as opposed to a
bench trial, or a trial by the judge?

A. Told me it would be better for me 1if

I would go in front of a judge.

Q. You accepted that recommendation?
A, Yes, sir.
Qs Mr. Martinez, should the Judge decide

s

that you should be granted habeas release and

release you, what would you then do?

A. Go back to Texas and start working. -
Q. Who is in Texas?
A. My mother and father and my brother,

sisters, Already got a place to go to, and I got a

job in my father's business.

@ What kind of business is your father
in?

A. Plumbing.

0. Do you have money available to

provide transportation for you back to Texas?
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A. All I got to do is make a phone call,

and they'll send me the ticket.

Q. Have they sent you money in the past?

A, Yos,; Sir.

Q. They have?

A. . Yes, sir.

Q. Have they sent money here to Virginia?

By Yes, sir. Back in December.

Q. Do you know how you made parole in
Texas?

A. Well, it was I think by the record I

had in Texas, never getting in no kind of fights or
trouble down there.
s

Q. Your testimony is that you had a good
prison record?

A Yes,; Bik.

Q. You've not had any problem with the
authorities there in Texas? - !

A. Not ever.

0. Have you had any problems with the
authorities since you've been here in Virginia?

A No, sir.

Q. How long have you been here 1in
Vvirginia?

A Back in September the 5th, '85.
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O You were fairly recently turned down

for parole in Virginia, were you not?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. When did you make parole in Texas?
A. I made parole twice back in '84 and

'85.

THE COURT: At the original trial,
the letter from the Department of Corrections in
Texas said that Mr. Martinez's minimum parole was
sometime in 1991. —

MR. FORBES: 1991, I saw that in the
transcript. I was trying to ascertain as to whether
or not Mr. Martinez had any personal knowledge as to

s
why he made parole earlier than apparently what the
letter indicated by reading that.

Judge, may I inquire as to whether or
not the letter is in the court file?

THE COURT: Not in this filei
Presumably it would be in the =-- it would be in the
record of the trial of this case. It's not in the
habeas corpus file before me.

MR. FORBES: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All we have in that file

is the transcript.

OOOOS%
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BY MR. FORBES:
Q. Mr. Martinez, did you receive any

good time in Texas?

A. Yes, sir.
0. How was that computed, if you know?
A, Three days for one in Texas for being

on good behaviér.

Q. Were you ever made aware that there
were changes in the parole conditions with respect
to good time or in any other way for which you are
aware of that applied to you or that became

applicable to you?

A. No, sir.

Ed
Q. You're not aware of any changes?
A. No, sir.

Q. The basis for when you pled not
guilty back on June the 21st of 1974, did you.know
beforehand that you were going to be found guilty?
Did you have any reason to believe that you were

going to be found guilty?

A. Yes, sir.
0] How and why is that?
A. My counselor and the Commonwealth's,

they told me the Court was going to find me guilty.

THE COURT: Based on the evidence.
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What was the question?

BY MR. FORBES:

Q. Mr. Martinez, are you aware of any
evidence that counsel might have presented on your
behalf had you requested a jury trial?

A. ' No, sir.

Q. Okay. How much time did you serve in

Texas before you first made parole?

A, Eleven years.

Q. How much time have you served now in
total?

A. IE will be twelve years, eleven

months and days.
MR. FORBES: Judge, that's all I have.

THE COURT: Mr. Condon.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. CONDON:

Q. Mr. Martinez, you, in fact, gave a
full confession to the police, and that was offered
at the trial?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On page 4 of your petition, you make

000060

BIGGS REPORTING SERVICE




10
11
12
13
14
715
‘16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

14

the statement: Even so, the Judge presiding over my
cause ordered my appearance within his chamber and
thereby confirmed the agreement.
What agreement are you talking about?
A. I thought it was the judge at first,
but he wasn't.
Q. quay. So you're withdrawing that

statement, that claim?

A, Yes, sir.

(0 You never had a meeting with this
judge?

A. No, sir.

0. A%l right. Counsel asked you about

this so-called agreement or bargain, as you've
characterized it in your petition, and I think he
asked you whether or not you realized it was subject
to approval by the judge, and you said yes; isn't
that correct?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Now, did you ever hear the judge in
your trial tell you that you wouldn't have to come
back to Virginia?

A, No, sir.

Q. Who assured you or who told you that

you would never have to come back to Virginia? Was
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it Mr. Hogge?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it the Commonwealth attorney, Mr.
Duff?

A. I think 80

Q. ;You don't remember?

A. :Well, it was Duff. It was my

counselor and that -- call him that Commonwealth of
Virginia attorney. I don't know what you call him
down here.

Q. You're saying that when you had this
meeting with your attorney and the Commonwealth
attorney, that they both told you that you wouldn't

s
have to come back to Virginia?

A. Yes.

[ But weren't you also told it was up
to the judge?

A. No, sir.

0. Isn't that what you said earlier,
that everything was subject to the judge's approval
on sentencing?

A. No, sir.

THE COURT: That's what he said.

What you're asking is whether they told him that.
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BY MR. CONDON:

0. Let me ask you this. You had 30
years to serve in Texas; isn't that right?

Als Yes, sir.

Q. And you'd just been sentenced when
you came up to Virginia?

A. Yas, sir.

0 You got 30 years in Virginia to serve
concurrent with your Texas time?

A, Yes, sir.

0 Back in 1974, did you consider that
that was a good deal?

A. Yes, sir.

s

o And you're unhappy with it now
because you feel like you should have been released
when you finished your time in Texas; is that
correct?

A, Yes, sir.

0% All right. At trial the judge asked
you at the very beginning of your trial whether or
not you had talked to Mr. Hogge, your attorney,
about whether or not to have a bench trial, a judge
trial, or a jury trial -- and this is on page 6 of
the transcript -- and the judge asked you if you

talked about whether or not to have a judge or a
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jury, and you said, Yes, sit.

The judge
understand the choice that
sir.

And then he
decision was, and you said
Why did you

judge trial?

asked you do you
you have. You said, Yes,
asked you what your

you wanted a judge trial.

decide to go with the

A. Because they already told me that

they were going to run my time concurrently with my

Texas sentence and that I would not have to come

down here and do no time.

Texas.

5

I could do all my time in

Qs Was that the only reason for taking a

judge trial?
A. Yes, sir.
THE COURT:
without getting any extra
sound like a bad deal from
MR. CONDON:
questions I have, Judge.

MR. FORBES:

time to serve,.

Pretty good reason really,
Didn't
this standpoint.

I think that's all the

Just one or two, and I

think it's a little different.
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. FORBES:

. Mr. Martinez, just to make sure that
we're absolutely clear as to what transpired here.
In your petition you indicated that you were in
chambers with your attorney and who else?

A. That Commonwealth.

Q. In your petition -- I understand we
have a little bit of a language problem or a
language barrier.

In your petition that was filed --
first of all, di% you have some help in filing this

petition?

A. A friend of mine helped me.

Q. You helped him find the information?
A. Yes.

Q. He actually wrote it down?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know basically what the

petition says?

A. Yes.

Q. In your petition you indicated that
the defense attorney, court-appointed defense

attorney, and someone else met with you prior to
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trial.
A, Yes, sir.
D.s Who did you indicate that person was?
A. DA or, what, Commonwealth's.
Q. So it's your testimony that in your

petition --

A. I put it was the judge.

Q. Thank you. Listen very carefully.
Do you now believe that to be the case? Do you

think that you made a mistake?

A. I made a mistake when I wrote it.

0. ~You feel certain about that?

. o8 Y%s, S1T.

Q. Who do you think it was that you met
with?

A. That Commonwealth's.

Q. Attorney?

A. Attorney.

Qs Now, are you certain of that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Based on counsel's question that the

Commonwealth attorney and Mr. Hogge indicated to you
that you would not have to come back here to
Virginia?

a. Yes, sir.
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MR. FORBES: That's all I have.

MR. CONDON: I have one more.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. CONDON:

O Are you saying, then, that they told
you it was a certainty, an absolute certainty, or
did they tell you that it was a good possibility or

a good chance that you wouldn't have to come back?

A. They told me I would not have to come
back.

Q. You're saying they guaranteed it?

A. Yes, sir. I could do my time in

Texas, and whatever Texas did with me, the State of
Virginia would be satisfied.

MR. CONDON: Okay.

THE COURT: Mr. Forbes.

MR. FORBES: Judge, that's all the
questions I have of this witness. I would like to
put Mr. Hogge on the stand when he's available.

THE COURT: Do you have other
witnesses?

MR. FORBES: No, sir.

THE COURT: Well, then, Mr. Martinez,
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go back in that witness room back there and wait
until Mr. Hogge gets back. It should be five or ten

minutes.

We'll be in recess.

(Whereupon, a recess was taken.)

THE COURT: Let the record show that
both attorneys are now present in court, and Mr.
Martinez is also present in court.

Who do you want next, Mr. Forbes?

~MR. FORBES: Call Mr. Kenneth Hogge.

TEE COURT: Mr. Hogge, take the oath.
(Whereupon, the witness was sworn.)
THE COURT: All right, sir.
KENNETH HOGGE,

a Witness, having been first

duly sworn, was examined and

testified as follows:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. FORBES:

0. State your name, please, sir.
A. Kenneth Hogge.
Q. Mr. Hogge, are you at all familiar

with the gentleman seated to my left?

A. Yes.

Q. His name is Cosme Martinez, is it not?
A. That's right.

Q. You were court appointed to represent

him on some offenses which took place and were tried
back on June 2132 of 197472

A. That's right.

Q. Mr. Hogge, I want you to explain to
the Court, if you can recall, the nature of your
handling of that case. Ultimately, how was that
case disposed of?

A. It was actually tried.

Q. And what, if anything, took place
between you and the Commonwealth attorney prior to
the trial?

A. We discussed what the penalty would
be and agreed that it would be the same as he h;d in

Texas but would run concurrently with the Texas time.
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Q. Do you remember who the Commonwealth
attorney was at that time?

A. I think Charles H, Duff.

Qs That being consistent with what the
transcript would show?

A. Yes.

Q= Do you remember whether Mr. Duff was
the Commonwealth attorney or the assistant
Commonwealth?

A. He was assistant.

Qs Do you recall how it was that the
plea came to be a not guilty plea as opposed to a
guilty plea? )

A. Yés, sir. That was tolpreserve his
right of appeal.

Q. Why was that done that way?

A, Well, we weren't sure the Court would
go along with what we talked about as far as
sentencing.

Q. So you and the Commonwealth attorney
had reached an agreement, but that was going to be
subject to the Court's approval?

A, Definitely.

Q. For that reason, you had him plead

not guilty?
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A. Right.

Q. Was Mr. Duff in accordance with that?
A. I don't recall.

Q. Do you recall whether or not you and

Mr. Duff met with Mr. Martinez prior to the hearing

that day? -
A. I know I did. I'm not sure about Mr.
Duff.
Qs You're not sure whether he did or not?
A. Uh-uh.
Q. Can you tell us today whether you had

any expectation then that Mr. Martinez would serve

his time in Texas and still have to come up here and
s

serve time? -

A. I thought he would never come back to
Virginia.

Q. And do you recall whether or not you
told him that he would not have to come back to
Virginia?

A. I didn't tell him that, I know. I
didn't make any promises to him.

Q. But you're telling us today that you
had no expectation that he would be coming back?

A. I don't think anybody did.

Q. You do not recall whether or not Mr.
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Duff was present when you had your meeting?
A. No, I don't. It wouldn't be normal
for him to be present.
o You don't recall?
B No, I don't recall.
MR. FORBES: Judge, that's all I have.

THE COURT: Mr. Condon.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. CONDON:

Q. Mr. Hogge, at the time of this trial
in June of 1974,’how long had you been a member of
the Vvirginia Bar?

A. Since 1955.

Q. If you can estimate for us today, in
1974, if you can recall, what percentage of your
practice would you say was involved in criminal law?

A. Probably 80 to 90 percent.

O In all your discussions with your
client before and during trial, are you saying, then,

that you never guaranteed or never told him that it

was an absolute certainty that he wouldn't be returning

to virginia?

R No. I1'd been practicing law for
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about 20 years at the time, and there was no way I
could guarantee anything to the defendant or even
tell them there was a guarantee.

Q. Also, there was no guarantee that the
Court would approve your sentence?

A. That's right. In fact, the Court was
reluctant to take it.

Q. Were you aware in 1974 that it was
really up to the Virginia Parole Board and not
really up to the Court to decide?

A. Probably.

“MR. FORBES: I didn't get that.

THE COURT: He said probably.
r

BY MR. CONDON:

Q. Would it be fair, then, to say that
what you told your client in 1974 was that it was a
good possibility that he wouldn't return but no
guarantee?

A. I'm sure I didn't use the word
guarantee, I said it's a possibility that he
wouldn't come back. I may have even said
probability.

MR. FORBES: Judge, I'm going to

object to this unless Mr. Hogge can remember what he
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said.

THE COURT: He said he can't really
remember. He's trying to reconstruct it as far as
he can.

MR. CONDON: That's all the questions
I have, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Forbes, do you have
any further questions?

MR. FORBES: No, sir.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Hogge.

Anything further by way of evidence?

MR. FORBES: No, Your Honor.

MR. CONDON: No, Your Honor.

TﬁE COURT: What does counsel want to
say?

MR. FORBES: Your Honor, please, Mr.
Martinez has filed this habeas petition based on two
grounds, and they're not altogether different
grounds.

His first issue with regard to relief
would be whether or not he had, in fact, received
effective assistance of court-appointed counsgl.

And with respect to that issue, I'm saying on one
hand that most assuredly his end result, as

everybody would have expected it to be or would have
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THE COURT: I don't put much weight
on the idea that had he taken a jury trial he would
have done better. I don't think he would have.

MR. FORBES: Judge, I don't think he
would have either. My point is I don't think you
have to go into that.

I don't think you have to speculate
which would have been the better choice. I think
you have to recognize he had the right to election,
and this influenced his decision.

I'm not implying that this Court or
any Court should necessarily believe that he could
have done better; All I'm saying, the right was
there and his deéision -- voluntariness of his
decision was, without question, prejudiced by the
facts as presented to him.

Again, that's not to imply that Mr.
Hogge intentionally did anything wrong or even did
anything that 99.9 percent of the people wouldn't
have done, because I know if I were in that
situation, I would not have had the wherewithal to
have guessed that this situation could have

transpired.
[

THE COURT: All right. There's no

substance to the claim of ineffectiveness of counsel.
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The record will show that has not been established.

Mr. Martinez has said certain
portions of his petition were incorrect because
somebody wrote the petition for him, and they were
wrong.

Well, after the somebody, whoever it
was, wrote it for him, Mr. Martinez signed it. And
I don't think it sounds very much as though it's
required to assume he didn't read it. Of course, it
was notarized and sworn to.

What happened in this case,
apparently, based on the evidence, is that the
defendant, now tﬁe petitioner, his attorney, and the
assist;nt Commonﬁealth's attorney looked at 30 years,
The 30-year sentence in Texas, and determined that
they would try to get this Court to give Mr.
Martinez a 30-year sentence to serve concurrently
with the one in Texas. And they figured, all of
them, it was going to be if you serve 30 years in
Texas, you serve 30 years' prison time in Virginia.
That may even have been correct.

It may even have been that Mr.
Martinez would have been serving his concurrent
sentence in the Virginia Correctional System and

Texas wouldn't be getting him back on a current
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basis.

It's at least arguable that he might
have been paroled here sooner than he was in Texas
and Texas would have faced the same problem Virginia
faced when Texas paroled six, seven years prior to
the stated earliest possible release date.

In that letter in evidence back in
1974, no substantial defense was raised. He pled
not guilty but no other real evidence to derail the
approximation he made, presumably because now the
petitioner, his attorney at that time, and the
Commonwealth's attorney had made the transposition.
Thirty years in ﬁexas must equal 30 years in
Virginia. If you run them concurrently, he'll get
through down there, he won't come back. Nobody said
that in the hearing.

I think == I don't think there's a
technical matter, that Mr. Martinez would have any
way to enforce that.

He brought this proceeding. Mr.
Martinez is -- unless he's changed a great deal in
the last eleven or twelve years, he's not an
outstanding citizen. But in this case, I think that
the actions he took and the actions his attorney

took and the actions that the Commonwealth's
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attorney took were all based on the same
misconception of what was going to happen, or
presumption. And in the view of this Court, this
man might will be entitled to be treated in that
special circumstance of this case. This man is
entitled to be treated as he and counsel,
respectfully, shall be treated.

I don't have any independent
recollection of what the Court thought at the point,
if it was discussed at all. I think it was.

The petition is granted. The
prisoner is to be released.

You have indicated in testimony, Mr.

s
Martingz, that you have access to someone who will
provide you tickets and transportation means back to
Texas; is that correct?

MR. MARTINEZ: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: How long will it take you
to arrange that once you leave here?

MR. MARTINEZ: My people be working
right now. Different time down there.

THE COURT: I'1ll ask Mr. Forbgs to
prepare the order and submit it to Mr. Condon for
endorsement. The order will grant the writ and_

release to become effective when Mr. Martinez has at
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